2015

**Salt Lake City, Plaintiff/Appellee, v. Samuel Lorin Jenkins,
Defendant/Appellant**

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is an appeal from the sentence following a plea to one count of Violation of a Protective Order, a class A misdemeanor in violation of Utah Code §76-5-108, in the Third Judicial District, Salt Lake County, Utah, the Honorable Vernice Trease, presiding. R. 26-28. A copy of the Sentence, Judgment, and Commitment is attached as Addendum A. This Court has jurisdiction under Utah Code §78A-4-103(2)(e).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES, STANDARD OF REVIEW, PRESERVATION

Issue I: Whether the trial court abused its discretion when it sentenced Mr. Jenkins to supervised probation for a period of 24 months.

Standard of Review and Preservation: “The sentencing decision of a trial court is reviewed for abuse of discretion.” *State v. Valdovinos*, 2003 UT App 432, ¶ 14, 82 P.3d 1167. Unpreserved claims may be reached under the doctrine of plain error. *State v. Holgate*, 2000 UT 74, ¶ 11, 10 P.3d 346.

RULES, STATUTES, AND CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

Utah Code §76-1-104 is relevant to this appeal and included as Addendum B.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The City charged Mr. Jenkins with one count of Violation of a Protective Order, a class A misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code §76-5-108. R. 1. On October 24, 2014 Mr. Jenkins pled guilty to that charge. R.33-34. Mr. Jenkins was sentenced that day to 365 days in the Salt Lake County Jail and an \$800 fine. R. 26-28, Addendum A. The district court stayed the imposition of the jail and placed Mr. Jenkins on supervised probation through Adult Parole & Probation (“AP&P”) for a period of 24 months. *Id.* The court imposed the fines, fees, and numerous other conditions of probation. *Id.* Mr. Jenkins timely appealed. R. 37.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Mr. Jenkins claims that the trial court abused its discretion when it sentenced him to 24 months of supervised probation.

ARGUMENT

I. The Trial Court Abused Its Discretion When It Sentenced Mr. Jenkins To Supervised Probation For A Period Of 24 Months.

Mr. Jenkins feels strongly that the trial court abused its discretion when it sentenced him to supervised probation for a period of 24 months. “An abuse of discretion results when the judge ‘fails to consider all legally relevant factors’ or if the sentence imposed is ‘clearly excessive.’” *State v. McCovey*, 803 P.2d 1234, 1235 (Utah 1990). “An appellate court may only find abuse ‘if it can be said that no reasonable

[person] would take the view adopted by the trial court.” *State v. Houk*, 906 P.2d 907, 909 (Utah Ct. App. 1995). Utah Code section 76-1-104 “sets forth four general goals of Utah’s criminal code,” and includes the important goal to “[p]rescribe penalties which are proportionate to the seriousness of offenses and which permit recognition of differences in rehabilitation possibilities among individual offenders.” *LeBeau v. State*, 2014 UT 39, ¶ 34, 337 P.3d 254 (emphasis in original) (quoting Utah Code §76-1-104(3)) (brackets omitted).


Mr. Jenkins maintains that the trial court’s sentence of 24 months of supervised probation was too harsh in light of his positive accomplishments on previous probation and the non-violent nature of his crime. R. 34 (showing that Mr. Jenkins pled guilty to a violation of protective order because he was purposefully in the vicinity of the protected party). Further, the judge’s decision was inherently unfair because it failed to credit the positive accomplishments that Mr. Jenkins had made. For example, Mr. Jenkins had successfully completed the Prime for Life Program for a prior case and had positive achievements on prior probation. R. 48:7-8.

In light of these achievements and the non-violent character of the charge, Mr. Jenkins strongly believes that the trial court should have been more lenient and should have allowed him to serve a lesser probationary term. It is Mr. Jenkins’s position that the trial court’s decision to impose 24 months of supervised probation was an abuse of discretion. Mr. Jenkins further maintains that this sentence was clearly excessive given the nature of the charge. Should the Court have given him a shorter probationary period, Mr. Jenkins would be well on his way toward successful completion.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth herein, Mr. Jenkins respectfully requests that this Court reverse the district court's sentence of a 24-month probationary period. He requests that his case be remanded with instructions to impose a shorter probationary period. In the alternative, he asks for the case to be remanded for a new sentencing hearing.

SUBMITTED this 2nd day of July, 2015.



AMY N. FOWLER
Attorney for Defendant/Appellant