2015

**Salt Lake City, Plaintiff/Appellee, v. Samuel Lorin Jenkins,
Defendant/Appellant**

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Defendant appealed his sentence following a plea bargain pleading to one count of Violation of a Protective Order, a Class A misdemeanor in violation of Utah Code Ann. §76-5-108 before the Honorable Judge Trease, Third District Court, Salt Lake County. This Court has Jurisdiction under Utah Code Ann. §78a-4-103(2)(e).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The City charged Defendant with one count of Violation of a Protective Order, a class A misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code §76-5-108. R. 1. On October 24, 2014 Defendant pled guilty to that charge in exchange for dismissing three other Violation of a Protective Order cases: 141909264, 141909938, and 141912487. R48:1-2. (A forth violation of protective was dismissed by motion later based on the plea) Defendant waived his right under Utah Rule of Criminal Procedure 22, and was sentenced that day to 365 days in the Salt Lake County Jail and an \$800 fine and to comply with the terms of

probation that already existed under case 111905380¹. R. 26-28, The joint recommendation of sentencing between the City and Defendant was that the Defendant would be on probation 18 months of probation (supervised by Adult Probation and Parole), complete a domestic violence evaluation and pay a fine. R. 48:6. The Court clarified prior with the defendant and counsel prior to him entering a plea that “The sentence on this case [protective order violation 141909145] could run back to back, or consecutive or concurrently...” R 48:4. The district court stayed the imposition of the jail and placed Defendant at his request back on probation supervised by Adult Parole & Probation (“AP&P”) for a period of 24 months. R. 48:10-11. The court imposed the fines, fees, and numerous other conditions of probation including comply with his other probation which pre-existed this plea. *Id.* Defendant timely appealed. R. 37.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The trial court was well within its discretion when it sentenced Defendant to 24 months probation.

ARGUMENT

I. The Trial Court Did Not Abuse Its Discretion When It Sentenced Defendant To Supervised Probation For A Period Of 24 Months.

Defendant was given the opportunity of probation when the court sentenced him to supervised probation for a period of 24 months. “An abuse of discretion results when the judge ‘fails to consider all legally relevant factors’ or if the sentence imposed

¹ The sentencing post Order to Show Cause of case 111905380 was also appealed by defendant Court of Appeals case number 2014-1048-CA

is ‘clearly excessive.’” *State v. McCovey*, 803 P.2d 1234, 1235 (Utah 1990). The trial court released the defendant from custody and allowed him an opportunity for probation. “The Utah Code authorizes a court to impose probation as a sentencing alternative, but nowhere does it provide a limitation on the length of probation a court may set.” *State v. Wallace*, 2006 UT 86, ¶ 16, 150 P.3d 540, 543.

Sentencing the Defendant back to probation was particularly generous on behalf of the trial court given that he had two orders to show cause from his previous probation. See Case No. 20141048- CA. “An appellate court may only find abuse if it can be said that no reasonable [person] would take the view adopted by the trial court.” *State v. Houk*, 906 P.2d 907, 909 (Utah Ct. App. 1995). In the present case it is apparent that the trial court was being more than reasonable when after two Orders to Show Cause for failing to comply with probation, the court asked Defendant if he wanted to attempt probation again or to close the case with jail. Defendant stated he wanted to be on probation. “Your Honor. I’m very serious about doing probation...” R. 48:9-10

Defendant maintains that the trial court’s sentence of 24 months of supervised probation was too harsh in light of his “positive accomplishments” on previous probation and the non-violent nature of his crime. App brief p. 3. The defendant fails to acknowledge that he had five subsequent violations of law while on probation, all regarding the same victim. Cases:

141909145 (present case);
141909932, Violation of a protective order occurring July 6, 2014;
141912487 Violation of a protective order occurring September 8 2014;

141909264 Violation of a protective order July 16, 2014; and case
141911075 Criminal Mischief DV, Guilty plea December 1, 2014.

All of the other protective order violations were dismissed in exchange for this plea. R 48:1 and R 52-53. Defense counsel for the state case (111905380) only referenced Defendant's 'positive accomplishments' with no specifics other than completion of prime for life. R. 48: 7-8.

Defendant also fails to acknowledge that 24 months probation is well within the probation terms contemplated by the legislature. Under Utah Code Ann. §77-18-1 (10)(a)(i) a court may terminate probation "upon completion without violation of 36 months probation in... Class A misdemeanor cases..." *Utah Code Ann §77-18-1 (10(a)(i) (2014)*. Sentencing Defendant to complete two years probation for this case does not run afoul of any statutory sentencing guideline.

Further, the judge's decision was more than fair granting probation despite the Defendant's performance on his prior probation. Defendant had filed a certification of completion of the Prime for Life Program three years after his plea for a prior case R. 48:7-8. He had two orders to show cause for failing to comply with his probation. See companion case State v. Jenkins 2014-2048-CA pending before this court.

Given Defendant's marginal performance on probation with 5 new violations of law and two Orders to Show Cause while on probation in the 2011 case, requiring Defendant to be on probation for 24 months is not unreasonable.

Utah's probation statute authorizes a court to impose probation as a sentencing alternative, but nowhere does it provide a limitation on the length of probation a court may set. Indeed, as interpreted by this court in *Wallace*, a sentencing court has full discretion to determine the length of a defendant's probation under Utah's probation

statute.